
 

COUNTY COMMISSION 
 

Ron Sellers 

District 1 

Member 

Ron Hirst 

District 2 

Chair 

Daniel P. Friesen 

District 3 

Vice-Chair 

Courthouse 

206 W. 1st Avenue 

Hutchinson, KS 67501 

 
 

AGENDA 
Commission Chambers  

Tuesday, January 19, 2021, 9:00 A.M. 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

II. Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and Prayer 
 

III. Welcome and Announcements by Commission Chair 
 

IV. Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda.  

Please come forward to the podium, state your name and address and limit your remarks to not more than 5 

minutes per item. 
 

V. Determine Additions or Revisions to the Agenda  
 

VI. Consent Agenda  

If any Commissioner would like further discussions or explanation of any item they may ask that it be removed 

from the consent agenda for additional consideration. 

A. Vouchers (bills or payments owed by the county or related taxing units) totaling    . 

B. CRF Vouchers totaling    . 

C. Change Orders 2021: 7, 10, 12. 

D. Appoint Sandy Pangburn to serve on the Reno County Health Department Advisory Board for a term 

effective 1/19/2021 – 12/31/2023. 

E. Appoint Aubrey Nuss to serve on the Reno County Health Department Advisory Board for a term effective 

1/19/2021 – 12/31/2023. 

i. Action – Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

Friesen  Sellers Hirst 
 

VII. Business Items 

A. Resolution 2021-04 Authorizing the Offering for Sale of General Obligation Refunding and 

Improvement Bonds, Series 2021. 

i. Presented by Kevin Cowan, Gilmore & Bell. 

ii. Action – Motion to adopt Resolution 2021-04 Authorizing the Offering for Sale of General 

Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2021. 

B. Discussion of a future Resolution to cancel certain county warrants by Donna Patton, County Clerk. 

C. Discussion of Policy on Commission Meetings. 
 

VIII. County Administrator Report 
 

IX. County Commission Report/Comments 
 

X. Executive Session 

A. Personnel matters of non-elected personnel for   minutes with no legal binding action to take 

place. 
 

XI. Adjournment 

















 

600868.20105\SALEDOCS 

 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 

01/12/2021 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-04 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE OFFERING FOR SALE OF GENERAL 

OBLIGATION REFUNDING AND IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2021, OF 

RENO COUNTY, KANSAS. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, Reno County, Kansas (the “Issuer”), has previously authorized certain internal 

improvements described as follows (collectively, the “Improvements”): 

 

Project Description Res. No. Authority (K.S.A.) Amount 

Repair or reconstruct, and replace 

and rebuild certain bridges  

2019-20; as amended 

by 2020-08 

68-1103 et seq. $7,850,000 

Courthouse improvements 2020-30 Charter Res. No. XXV, 

19-101 et seq. 

3,515,000 

Refuse disposal improvements 2020-31 19-2658 et seq. 4,940,000 

 

 WHEREAS, the Issuer desires to issue its general obligation bonds in order to permanently finance 

costs of such Improvements and to retire the following temporary notes of the Issuer, which were issued to 

temporarily finance a portion of the costs of the Improvements (the “Refunded Notes”): 

 

Series 

Dated 

Date 

Maturity 

Date 

Original 

Amount 

Outstanding 

Amount 

Redemption 

Amount 

Redemption 

Date 

2019 12/05/2019 12/01/2021 $6,250,000 $6,250,000 $6,250,000 03/01/2021 

 

; and 

  

WHEREAS, the Issuer proposes to issue its general obligation bonds to pay costs of the 

Improvements and to retire the Refunded Notes; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Issuer has previously issued and has outstanding general obligation bonds; and 

 

 WHEREAS, due to the current interest rate environment, the Issuer has the opportunity to issue its 

general obligation refunding bonds in order to achieve an interest cost savings on all or a portion of the debt 

represented by such general obligation bonds described as follows (the “Refunded Bonds”): 

 

Description Series Dated Date Years Amount 

General Obligation 

Bonds 

2010 05/15/2010 2021-2025 $70,000 

 

; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Issuer (the “Governing Body”) hereby selects the firm of 

Raymond James & Associates, Inc., Kansas City, Missouri (the “Purchaser”), as underwriter for one or 

more series of general obligation bonds of the Issuer in order to provide funds to permanently finance the 

Improvements, retire the Refunded Notes and refund the Refunded Bonds; and 

 



 

600868.20105\SALEDOCS 

2 

 WHEREAS, the Issuer desires to authorize the Purchaser to proceed with the offering for sale of 

said general obligation bonds and related activities; and 

 

 WHEREAS, one of the duties and responsibilities of the Issuer is to prepare and distribute a 

preliminary official statement relating to said general obligation bonds; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Issuer desires to authorize the Purchaser, in conjunction with the County 

Administrator, Clerk, and Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Wichita, Kansas, the Issuer’s bond counsel (“Bond 

Counsel”), to proceed with the preparation and distribution of a preliminary official statement and all other 

preliminary action necessary to sell said general obligation bonds. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY RENO COUNTY, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. The Purchaser is hereby authorized to proceed with the offering for sale of the 

Issuer’s General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2021 (the “Bonds”) in accordance 

with the information presented by the Purchaser this date.  The offering for sale of the Bonds shall be 

accomplished in consultation with the County Administrator, Clerk and Bond Counsel. 

 

 The confirmation of the sale of the Bonds shall be subject to the execution of a bond purchase 

agreement between the Purchaser and the Issuer (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”) in a form approved by 

Bond Counsel, the adoption of a resolution by the Governing Body authorizing the issuance of the Bonds 

and the execution of various documents necessary to deliver the Bonds.  The Chairman is hereby authorized 

to execute the Bond Purchase Agreement subject to the following parameters:  (a) the principal amount of 

the Bonds shall not exceed $16,375,000; (b) the true interest cost of the Bonds shall not exceed 3.00%; and 

(c) the present value savings associated with refunding the Refunded Bonds shall be not less than 2.00% of 

the outstanding principal of the Refunded Bonds. 

 

 Section 2. The Purchaser, in conjunction with the County Administrator, Clerk, and Bond 

Counsel, is hereby authorized to cause to be prepared a Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Bonds 

(the “Preliminary Official Statement”).  The Issuer hereby consents to the use and public distribution by 

the Purchaser of the Preliminary Official Statement in connection with the offering for sale of the Bonds. 

 

 Section 3. For the purpose of enabling the Purchaser to comply with the requirements of Rule 

15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Rule”), the Chairman and Clerk or other 

appropriate officers of the Issuer are hereby authorized:  (a) to approve the form of the Preliminary Official 

Statement, and to execute the “Certificate Deeming Preliminary Official Statement Final” in substantially 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit A as approval of the Preliminary Official Statement, such official’s 

signature thereon being conclusive evidence of such official’s and the Issuer’s approval thereof; (b) 

covenant to provide continuous secondary market disclosure by annually transmitting certain financial 

information and operating data and other information necessary to comply with the Rule to the Municipal 

Securities Rulemaking Board, as applicable; and (c) take such other actions or execute such other 

documents as such officers in their reasonable judgment deem necessary to enable the Purchaser to comply 

with the requirement of the Rule. 

 

 Section 4. The Issuer agrees to provide to the Purchaser within seven business days of the 

date of the Bond Purchase Agreement or within sufficient time to accompany any confirmation that requests 

payment from any customer of the Purchaser, whichever is earlier, sufficient copies of the final Official 

Statement to enable the Purchaser to comply with the requirements of the Rule and with the requirements 

of Rule G-32 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

 



 

600868.20105\SALEDOCS 

3 

 Section 5. The County Administrator, Clerk, and the other officers and representatives of the 

Issuer, the Purchaser and Bond Counsel are hereby authorized and directed to take such other action as may 

be necessary to:  (a) carry out the sale of the Bonds; (b) make provision for payment and/or redemption of 

the Refunded Notes and Refunded Bonds from proceeds of the Bonds; and (c) provide for notice of 

redemption of the Refunded Notes and Refunded Bonds. 

 

 Section 6. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



 

600868.20105\SALEDOCS 

(Signature Page to Sale Resolution) 

 ADOPTED by the Governing Body on January 19, 2021. 

 

 

 

(SEAL)              

         Chairman 

 

 

              

         Commissioner 

 

 

              

         Commissioner 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

      

 Clerk 

 

 



 

600868.20105\SALEDOCS 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE DEEMING 

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT FINAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Raymond James & Associates, Inc. 

 Kansas City, Missouri 

 

 

 Re: $13,840,000* estimated amount Reno County, Kansas, General Obligation Refunding and Improvement 

Bonds, Series 2021 

 

 

 The undersigned are the duly acting Chairman and Clerk of Reno County, Kansas (the “Issuer”), and are authorized 

to deliver this Certificate to the purchaser (the “Purchaser”) of the above-referenced bonds (the “Bonds”) on behalf of the 

Issuer.  The Issuer has previously caused to be delivered to the Purchaser copies of the Preliminary Official Statement (the 

“Preliminary Official Statement”) relating to the Bonds. 

 

 For the purpose of enabling the Purchaser to comply with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12(b)(1) of the Securities 

and Exchange Commission (the “Rule”), the Issuer hereby deems the information regarding the Issuer contained in the 

Preliminary Official Statement to be final as of its date, except for the omission of such information as is permitted by the 

Rule, such as offering prices, interest rates, selling compensation, aggregate principal amount, principal per maturity, 

delivery dates, ratings, identity of the underwriters and other terms of the Bonds depending on such matters. 

 

      RENO COUNTY, KANSAS 

 

 

 

      By:        

      Title:  Chairman 

 

 

 

      By:        

      Title:  Clerk 

 



600868.20105\SALEDOCS 

 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 

01/12/2021 

 

EXCERPT OF MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 

RENO COUNTY, KANSAS 

HELD ON JANUARY 19, 2021 

 

 The Governing Body (the “Governing Body”) met in regular session at the usual meeting place in 

the County, at 9:00 A.M., the following members being present and participating, to-wit:  

 

 

 Absent:   

 

 The Chairman declared that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

(Other Proceedings) 

 

 The matter of providing for the offering for sale of General Obligation Refunding and Improvement 

Bonds, Series 2021, came on for consideration and was discussed. 

 

 Commissioner _______________ presented and moved the adoption of a Resolution entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE OFFERING FOR SALE OF GENERAL 

OBLIGATION REFUNDING AND IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2021, OF 

RENO COUNTY, KANSAS. 

 

 Commissioner _______________ seconded the motion to adopt the Resolution.  Thereupon, the 

Resolution was read and considered, and, the question being put to a roll call vote, the vote thereon was as 

follows: 

 

 Aye: _______________________________________________________________________. 

 

 Nay:  _______________________________________________________________________. 

 

 The Chairman declared the Resolution duly adopted by the Governing Body and the Clerk 

designated the same Resolution No. 2021-04. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

(Other Proceedings) 

 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



 

600868.20105\SALEDOCS 

(Signature Page to Excerpt of Minutes) 

CERTIFICATE 

 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing Excerpt of Minutes is a true and correct excerpt of the 

proceedings of the Governing Body of Reno County, Kansas, held on the date stated therein, and that the 

official minutes of such proceedings are on file in my office. 

 

 

 

(SEAL)              

Clerk 

 











Revised: 10/26/2020

AGENDA ITEM

INFORMATION:
(From and Issue)

Discussion of Reno County Meetings

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington, County Administrator

AGENDA DATE: January 19, 2021

BACKGROUND Reno County currently does not have a statement of policy or guidelines that
explain the meeting process. To clearly explain how a meeting agenda is
developed and what to expect at a commission meeting a draft policy is attached.
This draft policy is referred to as the Reno County Board of County
Commissioners Statement of Policy on County Commission Meetings. The draft
policy has been reviewed and edited by the Reno County Counselor.

ALL OPTIONS 1. Approve the recommended Statement of Policy on County Commission
Meetings

2. Revise the recommended statement and revisit on January 26th

RECOMMENDATION Approval of a Statement of Policy is recommended at either meeting.

FISCAL IMPACT There is no fiscal impact.  A change in the number of meetings does not decrease
the need for commission action, it just places policy discussions on a bi-weekly
period.



RENO COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS STATEMENT OF POLICY ON
COUNTY COMMISSION MEETINGS

PURPOSE
This Statement of Policy has been developed to assure that meetings of the Reno County Board of County
Commissioners are conducted in compliance with K.S.A. 75-4317 et seq., the Kansas Open Meetings Act
(KOMA). This statement outlines Board policy on the schedule of regular and workshop meetings and on the
procedure to be followed during scheduled meetings. This Statement of Policy will be reviewed annually in
January.

POLICY
BUSINESS MEETINGS
Effective February 2021, the board of County Commissioners will hold regular business meetings dedicated
to the transaction of regular governmental business and the conduct of governmental affairs on the days
indicated below.

SECOND AND FOURTH TUESDAYS
Effective February 2021, the Board of County Commissioners will only hold a regular meeting on the Second
and Fourth Tuesdays of each month, if needed. When there is a Fifth Tuesday in any month, a regular meeting
will be scheduled for the purpose of transacting regular business. Any cancellation of the Fifth Tuesday will be
announced the week prior to a Fifth Tuesday. All Second, Fourth and Fifth Tuesday meetings will be
convened pursuant to K.S.A. 75-4317 et seq,.

SPECIAL MEETINGS/WORKS SESSIONS
Special meetings and work sessions may be called by the Chairman of the Board, a majority of the County
Commissioners or when required by state statute. When a special meeting or work session is called, the
Chairman shall notify the County Administrator who in turn shall notify the other County Commissioners.
All special meetings will be convened pursuant to K.S.A. 75-4317 et seq.

PROCEDURE
MEETING AGENDA
An agenda for all meetings of the Board of County Commissioners shall be prepared by the County
Administrator’s Office.  The Commission Chair may be consulted with for special agenda items. Agencies,
organizations, county departments and citizens desiring to meet with the Board of County Commissioners may
be placed on the agenda by contacting the County Administrator’s Office. The County Administrator may at
his discretion or after a request from Commission Chair establish an agenda date and time for the requesting
party in accordance with this Statement of Policy. The deadline for being placed on a business meeting is
12:00 PM on the Wednesday preceding the business meeting, unless the commission requests a late addition.

AGENDA BACKGROUND INFORMATION
To facilitate informed discussion and timely action agenda items, the Board of County Commissioners requires
adequate background information from the requesting party. A template provided by the County
Administrator’s Office outlines required information for parties and/or persons who request time on the agenda.

Departments, officers, agencies, organizations, and boards which are funded and/or created by or through
the Board of County Commissioners will be required to submit background information in a professional memo
format. The information that must be included in the memo is Agenda Subject, Background Information, Legal
Considerations (if any), Alternatives, Recommendation, and Financial Considerations. Digital copies of the
background information must be submitted to the County Administrator’s Office by the deadline stated above
for the agenda request to be scheduled.



Any organization, board, agency, or citizen different from those listed above shall submit similar background
information in a memo or email format. The information that must be included is the same as above, if
applicable. Digital copies of the background information must be submitted to the County Administrator by
the deadline stated above for the agenda request to be scheduled.

AGENDA SCHEDULE
Meetings of the Board of County Commissioners will begin at 9:00 A.M. on the meeting day unless otherwise
provided. The County Administrator will maintain a rotating report schedule with county directors to provide
directors the opportunity to meet with and present updates to the commissioners on a periodic basis.

MEETING PROTOCOL
Meetings of the Board of County Commissioners will be convened by the Chairman at the time stated on the
meeting agenda or as soon thereafter as circumstances allow. The agenda may be amended at the beginning of
each meeting by approval of the Board. Agenda items will be reviewed as follows, with changes to the order
of items made at the discretion of the Commission Chair.

A. Call to Order
B. Pledge of Allegiance and Prayer
C. Welcome and Announcements
D. Public Comment
E. Additions or Revisions to the Agenda
F. Consent Agenda
G. Business Items
H. County Administrator Report
I. County Commission Reports
J. Executive Sessions

Persons attending meetings of the Board of County Commissioners are allowed to address the Board on agenda
items only when they have been recognized by the Chairman. However, no person has a right to be disruptive
and such action will not be tolerated. Comments derogatory to individuals are not tolerated at public meetings.

After discussion of an agenda item the Board of County Commissioners may take action by formal motion. A
formal motion must be stated, seconded, and voted on by public vote of each participating commissioner.  No
secret ballots will be allowed.

PUBLIC COMMENT
The Board of County Commissioners have chosen to allow for public comment from Reno County citizens.
The public comment period is for individuals to make short and concise comments to the governing body on
items not on the agenda.  Registration to speak during public comment is required at the beginning of the
meeting on a provided sign-up sheet.  If there is a meeting that has large amounts of public comment requests,
the county commission may limit each speaker to 3 minutes or less to comment. Additional restrictions may
be made by persons that speak on a routine basis. The commission chair may also limit the number of speakers
that are repeating the same comments as prior speakers to expedite the meeting, while also allowing for
reasonable public comment.

EXECUTIVE SESSIONS
The Board of County Commissioners may hold executive sessions pursuant to K.S.A. 75-4319. To go into
executive session, the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4319(a) shall be followed.

ADJOURNMENT
Meetings of the Board of County Commissioners will be adjourned by the Chairman upon completion of
discussion and/or action on agenda items.


	01-19-2021 AGENDA.pdf (p.1)
	06C ChangeOrders.pdf (p.2-4)
	06D HE-AdvBdPangburn.pdf (p.5-6)
	06E HE-AdvBdNuss.pdf (p.7-8)
	07A ResBondSaledocs.pdf (p.9-15)
	07B DiscussionCancelWarrants.pdf (p.16-19)
	07C Commission Meetings.pdf (p.20-22)
	County Commission Meetings.pdf (p.1)
	Reno County Commission Meeting Guidelines Modified.pdf (p.2-3)


